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Topics
• Why carbon neutral?
• What is carbon neutral?
• How to work towards carbon neutral? 
• How does procurement fit in?
• How has Inner West changed procurement?



Why carbon neutral?



Why carbon neutral?

• Community demand
• Councillor resolution
• Risk management



What is carbon neutral?





Greenhouse gases 
(aka “carbon”)

• Carbon dioxide
• Methane
• Nitrous oxide
• Hydrofluorocarbons
• Perfluorocarbons
• Sulfur hexafluoride



Net emissions of 
greenhouse gases = zero



How to reach carbon 
neutral, and how does 
procurement fit in?





1. Calculate carbon emissions
2. Identify reduction actions
3. Implement actions
4. Offset remaining emissions

How to reach carbon neutral?



Council’s carbon emissions 



Council’s carbon emissions from electricity



Council’s steps to reduce carbon in electricity



• Street Light 
Improvement 
Program (SLIP)

• Replace old lights
with LEDs

• Cost savings in 
operation and 
maintenance

• Influence Ausgrid
• Buying group via 

SSROC

Streetlight pic

Reduce electricity used in streetlights



• Convert daytime 
power supply to solar

• Moree solar farm 
• Power purchase 

agreement (PPA)
• Origin Energy
• Buying group
• first local government 

PPA in NSW
• 4 million kWh each 

year
• Tranche #2 in 2022

Moree solar farm pic

Procure renewable electricity



Council’s carbon emissions from fleet



• Diverse fleet:
• Leaseback cars
• Operational cars 
• Light trucks
• Garbage trucks

• Options:
• Electric
• Hybrid (plug-in) 
• Hybrid (regen)
• Active transport

E vehicle pic showing plug so I can 
explain the source needs to be 
renewable

Procure low carbon fleet



• Investigations by Fleet, 
Procurement, 
Sustainability

• Considerations:
• Capital and

maintenance costs
• Carbon reduction 

(electricity source)
• Cost per unit carbon 

reduced
• Infrastructure needs
• Acceptance by staff

E vehicle pic showing plug so I can 
explain the source needs to be 
renewable

Procure low carbon fleet



Procure low carbon fleet

Vehicle type Short term Medium term

Leasebacks Hybrid (regen) Electric

Operational Bike fleet
Considering electric

Bike fleet
Electric

Medium Currently 
considering

Electric

Heavy Biodiesel Electric?



Pic illustrating biodiesel if 
possible (or the source)

Procure low carbon fleet



Natural Gas



Picture of Ashfield Pool (The 
only architect's drawing I 
could find is superimposed 
on the construction site, 
looks messy. How’re these?)



Learnings for utilities
• Bulk of carbon emissions

can be reduced through
changes in procurement

• Change in product rather 
than process

• Projects managed by small 
cross-department teams 

• Carbon savings are often 
also cost savings



What about the other stuff?



Diverse 
activities 
and 
purchases







• Sustainable Procurement Policy
• Standard sustainability requirements in contract
• Sustainability questionnaire in tender
• Referral of tenders to Sustainability
• Seek opportunities for swapping out products

Processes



Tender Documentation 
Package

Returnable 
Schedules

Conditions of 
Tender

Scope of Work Contract Terms



RFT referrals to Sustainability: case study

• Ventilation (variable speed 
fan and CO monitoring)

• Lighting (LED, motion 
sensors, dimmable)

• Independent metering

• Future proofing (EV 
charging)

Picture of underground carpark 
(generic, not identifiable)
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Seek opportunities for swapping out products





Sustainability in Design: Solar 

• Solar on all new builds and 
major refurbs

• Incorporate into design

• Tools to support:
• Technical spec
• Installer panel 
• Monitoring system
• Training for PMs



Sustainability in Design: Road Making

• Low carbon concrete 
(Kendrick Park Cycleway 
pictured)

• Permeable pavement

• Toner paver

• Recycled crushed glass in 
asphalt



Learnings for “other”
• More complex due to 

diversity of procurement
• Change in product rather 

than process
• Carbon savings are 

sometimes capital cost 
savings, but more often 
operational savings





Key lessons on journey so far

• Align with overall strategies

• Good data helps prioritise

• Incorporate into procurement process as early as possible

• Provide tools to support sustainable procurement:
• Technical spec
• Installer panel 
• Monitoring system
• Training for PMs

• Someone has done it before!



EXTRAS

12 December 2019 Section or Title



Screen shot Wattwatchers



Sustainability in Design

• Principles for key project 
types (e.g. small building 
upgrade)

• Tools to support principles
• Technical specifications

• Training

• Supplier panels

Picture of underground carpark 
(generic, not identifiable)



OperateOperateConstructConstructDesignDesignScopeScope



OperateOperateConstructConstructDesignDesignScopeScope



Laura’s graph of increasing solar 
capacity

12 December 2019 Section or Title



Screen shot tech specs



• More diverse and 
challenging

• Solar
• Energy efficiency

Other assets



Certainty



Change







Balancing act

• Climate change (mitigation 
and adaptation)

• Zero waste (circular 
economy)

• Vibrant local economy
• Indigenous engagement



Diverse 
Council 
procurement 
activities





Greenhouse Gas Common Use Detail

Carbon dioxide Electricity supply

Vehicle use

Burning fossil fuels to 
generate electricity or 
power

Methane Waste disposal Decomposition of organic 
waste in landfill

Nitrous oxide Electricity supply Burning fossil fuels to 
generate electricity or 
power

Hydrofluorocarbons Refrigeration, air con Coolant gases

Perfluorocarbons Refrigeration, air con Coolant gases

Sulfur hexafluoride Electricity supply Electrical insulator, arc 
suppressant



• Procurement, Legal
• Sustainable 

Procurement Policy
• Tender 

questionnaire
• Contract clauses
• Referral of tenders 

to Sustainability

Governance review



RFT referrals to Sustainability: case study

• Turning lights off

• Using low impact
chemicals





Prepare RFT

Issue RFT

Briefing

Q&A

Evaluate

Appoint

Receive Submissions

Monitor

Tender process




